
RFP #DEP-BOR-CVA 2020                                  April 15, 2019 

Proposers Conference Questions & Answers  

 

1. Q:  Pertaining to Background Information and Application Instructions: 

Part IV, Proposal Information (page 3) 

*Does this section pertain only to MSDF stations, or are MSDF vessels included? 

A:  Yes.  This section pertains to all MSDFs including stationary pumpout facilities, 
portable pumpout facilities, dump stations and pumpout vessels. 

2. Q:  Concern is dates and hours of operations – does a grantee’s vessel have to operate 
with the hours stated in the application instructions? 

*Application requires that applicants lock in days and hours of operation, which is also 
stated as a term & condition of final agreement. 

*Is there any flexibility in the days and hours of operation?   

A:  Yes.  A pumpout vessel does have to operate within the hours stated in the application 
instructions and then re-stated in any subsequent State Contract Agreement.  However, 
the applicant may provide for “minimum hours” of operation in the application package 
to allow for later and/or earlier start and end times to address boater demand during peak 
boating times, such as holiday weekends, festivals, etc.   

3. Q: There are 2 aspects of concern here;  
 
a) The grantee’s approved days are Friday – Sunday.  But what if the grantee is rained 

out on a Sunday, can the grantee allow the vessel to operate on a Monday (if possible) 
and still be in compliance with the contract?  What if something adverse happened on 
that Monday – would T&C’s “void” the grantee? 

A:  The applicant may choose to allow for “make-up days” which can be scheduled as 
needed in cases of inclement weather or high boater demand for pumpouts which could 
not be completed on the scheduled day.  This can be accommodated in the proposed 
vessel schedule in the grant application. 

b) The hours noted are usually for peak season, but often demand and staffing falls off 
by Labor Day, and the weather deteriorates.  It makes economic – and safety- sense to 
reduce days and hours of operation, or to “switch” them around. 

A:  Peak season should be clearly identified in terms of days that the vessel will operate, 
including any make-up days as discussed above.  However, early boating season (prior to 
Memorial Day Weekend) and late season (after Labor Day Weekend) may be identified 
as “by appointment only” or “based on boater demand” rather than as on a fixed 
schedule. 



 

4. Q:  Part VII, …Repair or Upgrade… (page 5) 
a)  For purchasing new equipment, can the applicant be brand-specific?  For example, 

instead of applying for a new “200 hp engine”, can we apply for “a new 200 hp 
Yamaha engine”? 

A:  Yes.  You may identify a specific brand, particularly if this is a replacement engine 
and the vessel is already wired for that type of engine. 

b) Does this refer to a new MSDF station or to new vessel equipment?  If it includes 
vessels, does that mean that an applicant has to break down actual equipment costs 
and then installation costs?  This activity usually comes as a lump sum pricing. 

A:  Yes.  It refers to both land-based pumpout facilities and vessels.  Equipment costs and 
installation costs should be broken down into separate line items in the budget wherever 
possible. 

c) If an applicant is breaking out installation costs, does that mean the applicant can 
include transportation and related labor costs incurred (to bring the vessel back and 
forth to whatever person is doing work (i.e. if an applicant purchases a new engine)? 

A:  Yes.  Installation may include hauling the vessel, transporting the vessel to and from 
the contractor who is conducting work, and re-launching the vessel. 

 

5. Q:  Part VIII, Total Budget Info (page 5-6) 
a)  3rd bullet – concerning 25% match, “cash and non-cash, in-kind services are eligible 

as match.  Any in-kind match or portion thereof in excess of the required 25% match 
of 25% …will not be eligible for reimbursement”. See bullet 4- 

A:  This is correct.  In-kind match in excess of the required 25% match will not be 
reimbursed.  

b) 4th bullet – states “…projects that provide more than 25% match will be more 
competitive” 

A:  This is correct.  Projects that provide more than the required 25% match will be more 
competitive. 

c) *Doesn’t this contradict bullet 3 statement?  The applicant can come up with more 
than 25%, but DEEP won’t count it? 

A:  If in-kind match (such as a slip donation) in excess of the required 25% match is 
provided, it will be recorded toward the applicant’s overall match.  However, in-kind 
match cannot be treated the same as cash match.  For example, if a grantee has a project 
with a total cost of $100,000, and a grant of $75,000, and a required match amount of 
$25,000, and submits a reimbursement request that includes cash expenses of $70,000, 



and in-kind match of $30,000, the reimbursement would only be for $70,000.  The 
$30,000 would be considered match for the project.  The excess match of $5,000 cannot 
be paid to the grantee because this was not a cash expense.  The excess match will be 
recorded in the DEEP database and the grantee will be given credit for such excess match 
in the review of the following year grant application. 

d) *Who are applicants competing with – each other? Vessels vs. fixed MSDFs? 

A:  The land-based facilities compete with other land-based facilities.  The vessels 
compete with other vessels.  

e) *Also, the “standard” is that DEEP (or Fisheries and Wildlife) owns 75% of whatever 
equipment, since it is paying for it.  But if an applicant provides up 40% of the cost, 
does this mean the ownership level shifts to 60/40?    Where is this memorialized? 

A:  The federal share of the equipment is always 75%.  If excess match is provided, it is 
considered excess match, and does not change the federal/local cost share percentage. 

 

6. Q: Appendix B, Scoring (pg 11) 

This rating grid gives more point opportunity to fixed MSDFs than vessels. Is it DEEP’s 
intention to move away from vessel operations, either geographically or as a whole? 

7. A:  Land-based MSDFs and Vessels have different possible total scores.  There are more 
questions, and therefore a higher potential score for land-based facilities.  Because of this, 
the land-based facilities and vessel programs are reviewed separately.  There is no 
priority given to either of these groups because they are both equally important.Q:  
Appendix C, Service areas (pg 12) 
This states a new pumpout vessel service for Fairfield will be given priority.  That service 
already exists; how does this qualify as a “new” service? 
 
A:  You are correct.  There is a pumpout vessel that serves Fairfield.  This service is from 
another area and was extended into Fairfield to serve boaters in Ash Creek and Southport 
Harbor.  However, it has been determined that an additional vessel that serves this area 
exclusively, or in conjunction with Bridgeport Harbor may be warranted due to the large 
number of sizeable vessels in this area.  Additional services are encouraged in this area to 
better serve boater demand. 

8. Q:  Appendix D – Terms and Conditions (pg 14) 

a)  A.1. If funding amount is modified, do applicants have the ability to modify the 
initially proposed service request so it fits with funding awarded (i.e. reduce operational 
hours or days)? 

A:  No.  If a reduced funding award is made by DEEP, the applicant has the option to not 
accept the award, or to accept the award.  In general, awards are only modified if the 



applicant has consistently been under budget for the past few prior years, has requested 
staffing costs that exceed that which can be justified based on the number of pumpouts 
conducted, and/or if ineligible line items have been requested. 

b) *Are these all the terms and conditions of the award?  The Agreement from previous 
years includes more terms and conditions than stated in this RFP 

A:  All of the terms and conditions of the award are stated in the RFP, instructions and in 
the appendices, including the sample State of Connecticut contract, and are subject to 
modification by the Office of the Attorney General if deemed warranted by the State of 
Connecticut’s contracting process. 

c)  B.2. Three bids/quotes required 

*Are the applicants costs to solicit bids an eligible expense for reimbursement, or towards 
our match? 

A:  Three quotes are no longer required, and the instructions have been modified, 
removing this requirement.  The cost of obtaining quotes is not eligible for 
reimbursement. 

d)  *Bid prices will not hold for 9-12 months, and equipment (models) can change; can 
applicants submit an estimate at time of grant application, then 3 bids at time of actual 
purchase? 

A:  Three quotes are no longer required, but it is recommended that the applicant obtain 
quotes to ensure that a reasonable price is being obtained.  Additionally, if the applicant 
has local or municipal requirements to obtain quotes, the applicant must follow its 
standard procurement process.  If the cost of the project is modified by the vendor 
between the time of application and the time of purchase, the applicant is welcome to 
submit an amendment request to DEEP to add funds to the contract. 

f) *Do applicants have to accept lowest bid presented? 

A:  Three quotes are no longer required.  If multiple quotes are obtained, the applicant 
may choose the bidder based on their own approved procurement process.   

g) *Do applicants have to obtain a bid that includes all installation costs, labor and 
equipment – or can applicants get one quote for equipment, and one quote for 
installation activities? 

A:  It is recommended that the applicant request that bidders identify the specific 
components of the proposal so that the applicant is able to identify specific line items 
requested in the CVA application form including equipment purchase, 
construction/installation costs, and associated supplies.   

h)  B.3. If upgrade requests are included on the O&M application, does this mean that 
the entire amount allowed for O&M combined with Upgrades is capped at $45K? 



A:  No.  Only the costs of Operation and Maintenance of a pumpout vessel are capped at 
a maximum of $45,000 per vessel.  If construction/installation/purchase/upgrade costs are 
requested, a separate budget page is required (see page 13 of the grant application). 

 

9. Q:  When applicants prepare our budget estimate for the next year, we are basing it 
mostly on actual, routine costs from the previous year.  For example, for fuel costs we 
use the number of gallons used in 2018 season and use today’s price of fuel. That seems 
to bring us within ballpark most of the time.  Payroll is more difficult to estimate – we 
base that on hours proposed in our funding application.  Payroll can have a large variable 
depending on how many operators we end up having and for how long through the 
season.  Going forward we will use an average of payroll costs for the previous 2-3 
seasons – but what happens if we don’t have enough funding for payroll costs during the 
season?  Is it better to over estimate or under estimate these expense? 

A:  Applicants should base their application budgets upon prior actual expenditures.  If 
the applicant has not expended all funds from a line item (such as personnel) in several 
prior years, it is likely that during the application review process, this line item may be 
reduced in order to provide a more accurate operational budget for the project and not 
encumber more federal funds that necessary.  If a budget is significantly underestimated 
for a specific project, or unforeseen circumstances during the boating season necessitate 
the addition of funds to a budget, the applicant may request a contract amendment to add 
funds.  Such request must include justification for the need for funds, which may be 
provided by DEEP provided that additional federal funds are available at the time of the 
request. 

 

10. Q:  Can applicants limit the size vessel we will pump, even if it is recreational?  Some 
large vessels may have a 100+ gallon holding tank and while our vessel may have a tank 
large enough, it could be an inefficient use of time and fuel to pump one or two large 
sized vessels, then empty our tanks, before we could service a number of smaller vessels.  
 
A:  Yes.  A pumpout vessel program may establish a size limit on the holding tanks that 
may be realistically be serviced by the pumpout vessel based on the capacity of the 
holding tank available in pumpout vessel.  Sufficient stationary pumpout stations are 
available to these larger recreational vessels at land-based marine facilities.  If a 
recreational vessel with a large holding tank requests service from the pumpout vessel 
which cannot be accommodated, the pumpout vessel program may refer this boater to the 
nearest stationary facility.  To locate pumpout facilities in Connecticut, please visit 
www.ct.gov/deep/pumpoutdirectory. 
 

 

http://www.ct.gov/deep/pumpoutdirectory


11. Q:  The Terms and Conditions and deliverables for the 2020 CVA, Pumpout Boat 
Program Grant are CONFUSING. Issues with the Terms and Conditions for the 2020 
CVA Grant. 
 
a) There are 83 pages of documents of Terms and Conditions to consider when applying 

for the 2020 Grant. 
 

A:  Yes.  There is a Request for Proposals, an Application Form, a number of appendices 
that are provided for guidance, and a sample State Contract included.  These documents 
are included to assist and guide applicants in this competitive application process. 

 

b) On the document titled:  CVA GRANT INFORMATION; The Headline says “For 
pumpouts and dump stations at boating facilities (not for individual boats)”  However 
throughout the document there are references to pumpout boats. 

 
 
A:  This program provides federal matching grants for the purchase, construction, 
installation, operation and maintenance of marine sanitation disposal facilities (MSDFs) 
including stationary pumpout facilities, portable pumpout facilities, dump stations, and 
pumpout vessels which are available for free to the general recreational boating public.  
To clarify, this program is not intended for use by individual privately or commercially 
owned vessel owners seeking to install and/or upgrade an on-board waste treatment 
system or holding tanks.  These activitiesare not eligible for funding. 

  

c) There are duplications in the documentation; such as Appendices.  For instance; 
Appendices (e.g. A&B) 

Appendix A Scope of Work and Appendix A: Checklist for Plans and 
Specifications; 

Appendix B Evaluation Form and Appendix B Schedule of Payments 

A:  These appendices are located in two separate documents.  One is the application form 
and one is the sample State of Connecticut Contract. 

 

12. Q:  Give applicants a simple, clear APPLICATION DELIVERABLE CHECKLIST for 
our 2020 CVA Grant.   

Just one example of multiple checklist references: 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) # DEEP-BOR-CVA 2020 March 20, 2019; 
APPLICATION Form: 
APPENDIX A SCOPE OF WORK, Operation and Maintenance Costs Associated with 
a Pumpout Vessel, 14. ADA Publication Statement, Appendix A: Checklist for Plans 
and Specifications 



And include a fillable Application. (As I go through the documentation, I find one that is 
fillable and one that is not; both under the same title. The title of the latter says: 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) # DEEP-BOR-CVA 2020 March 20, 2019  Clean 
Vessel Act – Opportunity for Funding the Construction, Installation, Purchase, 
Operation & Maintenance of Marine Sewage Disposal Facilities (MSDF)   

A:  Checklists have been provided for ease of creating a complete and consistent grant 
application.  A fillable application has been included, as well as an application that is not 
fillable.  Both versions of the application were provided in order to assist applicants that 
were experiencing difficulties downloading and saving the fillable application form. 

13. Q:  When preparing the budget for equipment upgrade, does the grantee have to show an 
estimated trade in value? 

 
A:  No.  This is not done as part of the application process.  If a piece of equipment is 
purchased with a piror CVA grant, the grantee must follow the requirements for disposal 
of equipment pursuant to the administrative rules governing federal programs under 2 
CFR 200.  For upgrades and/or trade-ins of existing CVA funded equipment, please 
contact the CVA program coordinator directly for specific guidance. 

 
           Q:  If so, where on the application does the applicant show the estimated trade in value? 

A:  This is not part of the CVA application process.  This is a compliance issue that is 
required as part of a prior CVA contract. 

14. Q:  Does the grantee have to trade in the equipment? 
 
A:  No. Pursuant to the equipment disposal rules under 2 CFR 200, if the CVA equipment 
has outlived its useful life, this can be documented with a marine survey.  If the 
equipment value is determined to be $5,000 or less, the equipment may be disposed of at 
the discretion of the grantee with prior DEEP approval. 
 
Q:  Can the grantee elect not to trade it in and instead donate the equipment to another 
Operator in the CVA program (subject to DEEP approval)? 

A:  Yes. 

  Q:  How would that be shown on the funding application? 

A:  It would not be shown on the funding application.  This documentation would be 
submitted outside of the grant application process as part of the compliance requirements 
of the contract under which the equipment was purchased.  Please contact the CVA 
program coordinator directly for details on how to dispose of CVA funded equipment. 

Q:  Does the grantee need DEEP approval for a donate vs. trade in, as part of this 
application? 



A:  DEEP approval is required for any change in disposition of CVA funded equipment.  
This is not conducted as part of a new CVA grant application. 


